

Vroozi Catalog

Content Administrator Guide

Vroozi Catalog provides buying organizations with a powerful and simple web-based tool to create product and service catalogs. Functions, such as drag-and-drop approval processes and pre-defined templates, empower procurement professionals and keep the catalog management process simple.

Table of Contents

Introduction	4
Key Terms	4
Administrator Homepage Anatomy	5
My Account: Account Preferences	8
User Information	8
Password Change	8
Forgot Password (for Administrators)	8
Default Settings	9
My Account: Message Center	9
Accessing the Message Center	9
Company Settings	10
Add & Delete Images (Logo Upload & Removal)	10
Mapping Configuration	11
Forms Configuration	12
System Definitions	14
Add A System	14



Domovo a Svetom	14
Remove a System	14
Homepage Cards	15
Add an Announcement Add Information	
	16
Edit Welcome Message	16
Edit a Homepage Card	17
Delete a Homepage Card	17
Supplier Card Preferences (Icon Order)	17
Help Content	18
Manage FAQs	18
Manage Policies	18
Manage Contact Information	19
View Help Content	20
Approval Workflow Preferences	20
Suppliers	21
Create a Supplier	21
Supplier Bulk Upload	21
Supplier Company List	22
Search	22
Edit an Existing Supplier	23
Activate, Deactivate or Delete a Supplier	23
Create a Custom Attribute	24
Content Views & Groups	26
Content Views	26
Content Groups	26
Configuration	27
Catalog Management	27
Catalog Manager Anatomy	27
Catalog Search & Filter	28
Export Catalog Content	28
Create an Internal Catalog	30
Internal Catalog Definition	30
Catalog Creation	30
Internal Catalog Images	30
Use Tiered Pricing	31
	51



Policy Items (Find a Vendor)	32
Create a Punchout Catalog	34
Catalog Creation	34
Create a Level II Punchout	36
Level II Catalog Definition	36
Catalog Creation	36
Edit a Catalog	38
Edit a Catalog (Direct Item Update)	38
Edit a Catalog (File Upload)	38
Catalog Version Management	38
Approve, Reject & Publish Catalogs Approve a Catalog Reject a Catalog Publish a Catalog Deactivate a Catalog Activate a Catalog Delete a Catalog Approve a Catalog Item Reject a Catalog Item Delete a Catalog Item Delete a Catalog Item Custom Fields Custom Field Types Create a Custom Field Activate or Deactivate Or Delete a Custom Field	39 39 40 40 41 41 41 42 43 43 43 45 45 46
Company Users	48
Create a User	48
Edit a User	48
Activate, Deactivate or Delete a User	49
Reset a User's Password	49
Data Mapping	50
Category Mapping	50
Supplier ID Mapping	52
Content Access Mapping	53



Unit of Measure (UoM) Mapping	
Currency Mapping	

54 54



INTRODUCTION

What is Vroozi Catalog?

Vroozi Catalog is a web-based content management system and catalog search engine. It allows corporate buyers and shoppers to search for products and services. More simply, Vroozi Catalog is the first step in your e-procurement process, as this is where you build shopper catalogs.

<u>Customers leveraging the Vroozi Marketplace shopping experience</u>, products and services are stored within the supplier catalogs and then sent to your organization's external system where it will convert to a Requisition. All information regarding approvals and resulting Purchase Order(s) are stored within that external system.

<u>Customers leveraging the Vroozi Purchase shopping experience</u>, products and services are stored within the supplier catalogs. Requested items are converted into a Requisition within Vroozi. Upon approval the Purchase Order is electronically sent to the supplier(s). All information related to the PO is stored within Vroozi.



Key Terms

During the setup process, you will configure several items in *Catalog* , including:

✓ <u>Suppliers</u>: To specify basic information about the suppliers that you company orders from.



- <u>Catalogs</u>: Inventory of supplier items or services available to shoppers or requesters.
- ✓ <u>Categories</u>: To determine how the suppliers' product information is categorized and presented to shoppers in your system.
 - Ex: Furniture, IT, Electronics, Uniforms.
- ✓ <u>Users</u>: The term "user" when seen in this guide refers to the individuals initiating the request of items or goods process.
 - Users within a Buying Organizations leveraging the full *Catalog* to *Vroozi Purchase* workflow are referred to as *Requesters*.
 - Users within a Buying Organizations utilizing *Catalog* content that is then sent to an ERP, are referred to as *Shoppers*.
- ✓ **Content Views**: Grouping of catalogs and suppliers into logical sets.
 - Ex: Region, Commodity, Division, Content groups are then assigned to Content Views.
 - A single Content View can belong to multiple Content Groups.
- ✓ <u>Content Groups</u>: Users assigned to a Content View(s). This assignment determines with catalogs and suppliers users will have access to.
 - Content Groups may be assigned to multiple Content Views
- External ERP Systems: To specify which external Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems shoppers will use to access your Marketplace instance.
- ✓ <u>Unique System ID</u>: Identifies the Shopper's originating ERP system
- ✓ <u>Unique Supplier ID</u>: The unique code generated by Vroozi Catalog to identify the supplier within Catalog.

ADMINISTRATOR HOMEPAGE ANATOMY



VR	ο	2	Enter search here			• Q	ttings • Shopper V
CONTENT	IANAGER	COMPAN	Y USERS DAT	A MAPPING S	SUPPLIERS		
ANNOUN	CEMENTS						
Your Abdullah catalog 1 export file is ready for download.							8
Your Cus	Your Custom Field 50 export file is ready for download.					×	
Your AK5-898 export file is ready for download.					- 16		
Your CAT	-11 export file is	ready for dow	nload.				ж
	Y				@ HELP		
 23 Await 1 Reject 9 Catalo 	talogs - 138 ing Approval ed Catalogs gs with Errors gs to Publish		 Active Suppliers Inactive Suppliers Inactive Suppliers Master Admins - Admin Users - 1 Shoppers - 137 Approvers - 4 Buyers - 1 Power Shoppers Shopper view on 	- 4	Policies Contact Us		
	3		SUPPLIER		MOST POPULAR	SEARCHES	
Working 24	Approved 8	Live 106	Supplier List	totalSpend 00,000,000,863.41	Search Term	Frequency 91	
		Total 11	Office Supply Inc Office Depot	\$123,796.07 \$50,704.16	Basharat Ak_socci A	79 55 43	
Catalog Typ Total Puncho Total Interna Total Quotes	l Catalogs	95 0	Grainger Cushman & Wakefield STAPLES AreebaGill	\$30,917.15 \$22,400 \$21,928.52 \$9,812.22	1050 ATLANTIC COL 6-march SujoyKar July-29-01	LISION 33 29 28 22	

- 1. <u>Your Logo Icon</u>: Clicking on it brings you back to the landing page of Vroozi Catalog
- 2. <u>Search Bar</u>: You are able to search across catalogs and catalog content.
- **3.** <u>Your Name/Account</u>: Your account gives you access to your personal *Preferences, Messages*, and *Help*. This is also where you are able to and sign out.
- **4.** <u>Settings</u>: Allows you to configure your *Company Settings* for items such as *Homepage Cards* and images.
- 5. <u>Shopper View</u>: Clicking on the *Shopper View* button will take the *Administrator* to the *Shopper User Interface (UI)*. This user will be subject to their assigned Content Views, which determine what content they are able to see. Users can use this functionality to review loaded catalog content as it would appear to a *Shopper*. This *Shopper View* is meant to be used as a read-only function, as users are not able to check out their *Shopping Cart* contents to an external ERP system.
- 6. Navigation Tabs:



- **Vroozi Catalog**: Gives access, creation and editing rights to Catalog Management and Content Views.
- **Company Users**: Where all *User Management* activities take place, like user creation, activation, deactivation, and deletion.
- **Data Mapping**: This is a module that is used to configure the *Data Mapping* for external ERP from *Catalog*. Only *Master Administrators* have access to this area.
- **Suppliers**: Where all *Supplier Management* activities take place like defining *Attributes* and uploading suppliers.
- 7. <u>Homepage Cards/Announcements</u>: There are several types of *Homepage Cards* available and must be created by the *Master Administrator*. These cards provide the user with insight into various sections of *Marketplace*
- 8. <u>Summary</u>: An overview of your company's catalog, supplier, and user statistics. (Further reporting available through Vroozi Analytics)



My Account: Account Preferences

The *My Account* area allows you to customize your profile information, update your password and amend your default settings all in one place.

USER INFORMATION

Before you get started using the system, it is recommended to set your information. Follow the steps below to personalize your account.

- 1. Hover over the area that has the *Account* drop down menu and your name. Select *Preferences* off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.
- 2. Fill out all the required information indicated by a red asterisk*. *Fax* is optional.
- **3.** Save.

PASSWORD CHANGE

You may update your password from the account 'Preferences' area. Follow the instructions below if you currently know your password or have a temporary password and would like to change it to a new one.

- 1. Also, in 'Preferences', scroll down to the bottom of the page and expand the *Password Change* section by clicking on the carrot.
- **2.** Input your Old Password.
- **3.** Type in your *New Password*, then confirm the same password. Your *New Password* must be different from your *Old Password* in order to be valid.
- 4. Save.

FORGOT PASSWORD (FOR ADMINISTRATORS)

If you are an *Administrator*, but not the *Master Administrator*, you are able to take care of this internally by contacting your company's *Master Admin* and asking them to reset your password for you.

As a *Master Administrator, Marketplace* does not allow you to reset your own password. Another *Master Admin* (on the same level) has to reset your password for you. See the *Reset a User's Password* section for step by step instructions.

If you are the only *Master Admin* for your organization, and you forgot your password, *Submit a Request* on the *Vroozi Zendesk* website at



https://vroozi.zendesk.com. There are instructions on how to do this in the *Help* section.

DEFAULT SETTINGS

Before you get started using the system, it is recommended to enter your *Default Settings*. Follow the steps below to update this section.

- 1. Near the top right of the screen, hover back to *Account* and *Preferences* off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.
- 2. Scroll down to and expand the *Default Settings* section by clicking on the carrot.
- **3.** Fill out all of the default information to your specifications using the drop-down menus. *Note: The Records per Page area pertains to lists displayed throughout the system like Users, Suppliers, etc.*
- **4.** Save. You will receive a success notification.

MY ACCOUNT: MESSAGE CENTER

Vroozi Catalog has an internal messaging system for users to communicate with each other that can be accessed from the *My Account* drop down menu.

Accessing the Message Center

The Vroozi Catalog Message Center provides users with the ability to communicate with other users of the application from their organization. It also serves as a central repository of all standard system-generated notifications, like catalog approval or publishing messages also received via email. This section shows how to view items in the Message Center.

- 1. Near the top right of the screen, hover over the area that has the *Account* drop down menu and your name. Select *Messages* off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.
- 2. Select the *Message* option from the drop-down menu. You will be navigated to the *Message Center*.
- **3.** Click on the notifications email link in the *From* column to view the message details. Just like email applications, the *Vroozi Catalog Message Center* has *Mark as Read* and *Delete* functionalities.



IN	NBOX(712)		
•	MARK AS READ	DELETE	
	FROM	SUBJECT	DATE
	notifications@vroozi.com	Some of the items of Internal Catalog: Allison Transmission have been published	05.02.2016
	notifications@vroozi.com	Some of the items of Internal Catalog: Allison Transmission have been published	05.02.2016
	notifications@vroozi.com	Your Catalog Allison Transmission has been unpublished.	05.02.2016
	notifications@vroozi.com	Your Catalog SMARTOCITRAINING has been unpublished.	05.02.2016
	notifications@vroozi.com	Some of the items of Internal Catalog: SMARTOCITRAINING have been published	05.02.2016

COMPANY SETTINGS

As the *Master Administrator*, you will configure your *Company Setting Defaults*. This section outlines how to view and manage this information.

ADD & DELETE IMAGES (LOGO UPLOAD & REMOVAL)

Master Admins can upload company logos so that they are visible to the community of users. Near the top right of the screen, hover over the *Settings* area with a *Cog Wheel*. Select 'Company Settings' off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.

1. Navigate to the middle of the screen. There is an *Images* section displaying three kinds of logos to upload in Vroozi Catalog.

nages			
Upload Company Logo:	SMART Cefining 828 Commerce	ADD 📓	Click the add button to the left to change the image.
Upload No Image Logo:	No Image Available	×	
Upload Find Vendor Logo:	VROZi	×	

<u>Company Logo</u>: This is your company logo that is visible to users from the home screen. When users click on this, it will navigate them back to the landing page.

No Image Logo: Picture associated with a listed item which is not available.



Find Vendor Logo: When uploaded, this logo can be accessed from the *Find a Vendor Supplier Card* on the *Shopper User Interface (UI)* landing page. When Shoppers can't find what they need in internal catalogs, they can click on the *Find Vendor Widget* in the *Homepage* supplier area to create *Free Text Requests*.

- 1. To add or update the logos, click the *Add Image* button.
- 2. Click the *Browse* button.
- **3.** Make the image selection from a file you have saved on your computer and click *Open*. (not pictured)
- 4. Scroll down to the bottom of the screen.

ages	Upload File	\$
		BROWSE
Upload Company Logo: SMARTOC	ADD Click the add button to the left to cha	nge the image.

- 5. To delete the No Image and Find Vendor Logos, simply click the red X.
- 6. Save.

MAPPING CONFIGURATION

Navigate to the Mapping section of the Company Settings area. You may click inside On or Off areas to make your selections. Turning these options On or Off, enables or disables the 4 functions (listed below) within Catalog . If this option is turned Off, the application will not execute when a Shopper checks out of their Shopping Cart to an external ERP system.

Mapping		
	Category Mapping:	● On ○ Off
	Unit Of Measure:	● On ◎ Off
	Currency Mapping:	On (Off
	Transfer Custom Field Description:	◎ On ⑧ Off

<u>Category Mapping</u>: Turning this option *On* or *Off*, enables or disables *the Category Mapping* function within *Catalog*. If this option is turned *Off*, the application will not execute *Category Mapping* when a *Shopper* checks out of their *Shopping Cart* to an external ERP system.

<u>**Unit of Measure**</u>: Turning this option *On* or *Off*, enables or disables the *Unit of Measure Mapping (UoM)* function in *Catalog*. If this option is turned *Off*, the



application will not execute the *UoM Mapping* when a *Shopper* checks out of their *Shopping Cart* to an external ERP system.

<u>Currency Mapping</u>: Turning this option *On* or *Off*, enables or disables the *Currency Mapping* function in *Catalog*. If this option is turned *Off*, the application will not execute the *Currency Mapping* when a *Shopper* checks out of their *Shopping Cart* to an external ERP system.

<u>**Transfer Custom Field Description**</u>: Vroozi Catalog supports extending the catalog template with Custom Fields. This Custom Field name and data can be transferred to the external ERP system when the Shopper checked out of the Shopping Cart. Turning on the Transfer Custom Field Description sends over the Custom Field name and data.

FORMS CONFIGURATION

1. Navigate to the *Forms* section of the *Company Settings* area. You may click inside *On* or *Off* areas to make your selections. In order to send data from the *Not in Catalog* form fields, you can map them to the NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD1 through 5.

orms			
	Not in Catalog:	On Off	
	Limit Request:	On Off	
	Free Text Identifier:	NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD1 V	
	Limit Item Identifier:	NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD2 V	
	Required Date:	NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD3 V	
	Delivery Date From:	NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD4 V	
	Overall Value:	NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD5 V	

Not in Catalog: Selecting *On* allows for end users to create *Free Text Requests*, meaning that they may place requests outside of the uploaded catalog contents.

Limit Request: Selecting *On* allows for end users to use the *Not in Catalog* form to create *Limit Orders*. A *Limit Order* is consisting of a requirement that will be delivered over a period of time.

Free Text Identifier: When a *Shopper* adds a request from the *Not in Catalog* form to their cart, the data needs to be transferred from that order to the external ERP system upon checkout. There are certain fields that are part of a *Free Text Request*



that are not included in the standard OCI schema of catalog fields that *Vroozi Catalog automatically* recognizes. To work around this limitation, these fields are mapped from the *Free Text Request* to OCI fields that are part of *Vroozi* standard catalog schema but are mostly unused. These fields are the NEW_ITEM-CUST_FIELD1 to 5. This particular field is an identifier that can be utilized within the external ERP system to tell if the order is a *Free Text Request* or not. This field and the *Limit Item Identifier* are usually mapped to the same OCI field.

Limit Item Identifier: When a Shopper adds a request from the Not in Catalog form to their cart, the data needs to be transferred from that order to the external ERP system upon checkout. This particular field is an identifier that can be utilized within the external ERP system to tell if the order is a Free Text Request or not. Limit Item and Free Text Identifier fields are usually mapped to the same OCI field. (see Free Text Identifier description above for more information)

Required Date: When creating a *Free Text Request* with the *Not in Catalog* form, *Shoppers* must provide a date that they require the product or service to be delivered. This date is specified in the *Date From* field. This field's data can be mapped into an OCI field and sent over to the external ERP system.

Delivery Date From: When creating a *Limit Item* request with the *Not in Catalog* form, *Shoppers* must provide a date that they require the product or service to be delivered. This date is specified in the *Date From* field. This field's data can be mapped into an OCI field and sent over to the external ERP system.



SYSTEM DEFINITIONS

This section allows the *Master Administrator* to configure the external ERP systems. The user will need to provide the external system's name and communication method to be used—this is either OCI or cXML.

Add A System

An organization can setup *Vroozi Catalog to* allow *Shoppers* to access the marketplace from multiple ERP systems. This area allows *Master Administrators* to configure these external ERP systems and their *Unique Identifiers*, so that *Vroozi Catalog can* recognize what system the *Shopper* is using to login and access the marketplace.

Vroozi Catalog can utilize this knowledge of the shopper's originating ERP system to execute custom data mapping that is different from the standard mapping (that the *Master Admin* has previously set up), upon checkout.

- 1. Select 'Settings' > 'Company Settings'
- 2. Scroll down to the System Definitions section of the Company Settings area.
- 3. Expand the System Definitions area by clicking on the carrot.

SYSTEM DEFINITIONS	¥.
HOMEPAGE CARDS	C.
HELP CONTENT	v
APPROVAL WORKFLOW	

- 4. Click the Add button. (not pictured)
- **5.** Type in the System Name.
- **6.** Select the *Communication Method* from the drop-down menu—either OCI or cXML.
- 7. Save. Your new system will appear in the System Definitions list.

Remove a System

This section outlines how to delete a system from *Catalog*. Removing a system will stop any transfer of data from *Vroozi Catalog to* that particular external ERP system for all users.

SYSTEM DEFINITIONS	
HOMEPAGE CARDS	5
HELP CONTENT	
APPROVAL WORKFLOW	Y

1. Check the box next to the *System Name* you would like to remove.



- 2. Click the *Remove* button.
- 3. You will receive a *Deletion Confirmation* pop up. Click the *Delete* button.

HOMEPAGE CARDS

The Homepage Cards area of the system allows Master Administrators to create welcome messages for their organization's Marketplace Shoppers, and to publish Announcements.

Add an Announcement

This section outlines how to add an *Announcement* to the *Homepage*. Unlike other *Homepage Cards*, *Announcements* can be dismissed by clicking the X, and there can be more than one *Announcement* published at the same time.

All Announcements are displayed for Administrators; however, Shoppers only see Announcements that are assigned to their specific Content Group.



- 1. Back in 'Company Settings', scroll down to the 'Homepage Cards' section of the *Company Settings* area.
- 2. Expand the *Homepage Cards* area by clicking on the carrot. (not pictured)
- **3.** Click the *Add Announcement* button on the right side of the screen. You may need to scroll down in order to see this.
- 4. Using the drop down, select the *Content Group* you would like to publish to.

SELECT CONTENT GROUP		•
		0
SELECT A CATEGORY	Chasity's Training Group	
	CG demo jay	
Font * Size *	IT Group B Supervisors	
	Test Group	
	Vrazi IT Group	
	Sandeep demo CG	
	CVG_GHC	
	sandeep test	
	VROOZI 2	
	All WRC_Training	

- 5. Select the *Category Color* that the users see using the drop-down menu.
- **6.** Type the *Announcement* in the text box. Custom font and hyperlinking are available.



Announcements will be displayed on the Homepage immediately. The user is able to dismiss the Announcement after reading it.

Add Information

Information Cards cannot be dismissed by the user. Only one *Information Card* can be published at a time.

- 1. In Company Settings scroll down to the Homepage Cards section of the Company Settings area.
- 2. Expand the *Homepage Cards* area by clicking on the carrot. (not pictured)
- **3.** Click the *Add Information* button on the right side of the screen. You may need to scroll down in order to see this.
- 4. Using the drop down, select the *Content Group* you would like to publish to.
- **5.** Type the *Information* in the text box. Custom font and hyperlinking are available.
- 6. The *Information* will be displayed for users like the last picture.

ormation		1
formation SELECT CONTENT GAOUP Font • Stre • B I U @ @ Please place your orders by Tuesday, U12 to prepare for the shortened work week. body: p		
Font • Size • B	7 U 🏔 🦚	
Please place your orders b	y Tuesday, 1/12 to prepare for the shortened work wee	ek.
body p		Å
body p		Å

Edit Welcome Message

This section outlines how to edit the *Welcome Message* to the *Homepage*. This image for the *Shopper User Interface (UI)* should not exceed 505 pixels by 200 pixels (i.e. 505 x 200).

- 1. Scroll down to the *Homepage Cards* section of the *Company Settings* area.
- 2. Expand the *Homepage Cards* area by clicking on the carrot. (not pictured)
- **3.** Scroll down to the *Shopper Welcome* area.
- **4.** Select the *Welcome Type*—either *Text* or *Image*. Only one type can be displayed at a time.
- **5.** Depending on your *Welcome Type* selection, click the *Edit Welcome Message* button for *Text*, or upload a *Welcome Image* by clicking the *Add* button.



Edit a Homepage Card

- 1. Expand the *Homepage Cards* area by clicking on the carrot.
- 2. Locate the existing Information or Announcement that needs updating.
- **3.** Click on the text of the *Homepage Card* you would like to edit—do not click the X unless you want to delete the entire card. A pop-up window will appear.
- 4. Here, the assigned *Content Group(s)*, the *Category* color, and the text can be updated.
- 5. Your *Homepage Card* has been successfully updated and will immediately take effect for user

Delete a Homepage Card

- 1. Locate the existing *Information* or *Announcement* that needs deleting.
- **2.** Click the X on the right-hand side. Your *Homepage Card* will be deleted immediately and taken out of your view and user view.

Supplier Card Preferences (Icon Order)

Suppliers can be sorted by ascending and descending alphabetical order or date of when the catalog was created. The picture below is an example of what the icons look like on the *Shopper View* landing page.



- 1. In Settings select Company Settings off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.
- 2. Scroll down to the *Homepage Cards* section of the *Company Settings* area.
- **3.** Expand the *Homepage Cards* area by clicking on the carrot.
- 4. Scroll down to locate the *Supplier Card* area immediately above *Help Content*.
- **5.** Use the Order By drop down menu to make the selection of how the supplier icons will be viewed. The changes will take effect immediately in the Shopper View.



Supplier Card Order By:	
Supplier Card Order By: HELP CONTENT APPROVAL WORKFLOW	NAME ASCENDING V
HELP CONTENT	DATE ASCENDING
Order By: NAME ASCENDING	
	NAME DESCENDING

HELP CONTENT

The Help Content is accessible to Vroozi Catalog users by navigating into their Account area below their name. It contains FAQ, Policies, and Contact information. These areas can be managed and updated from the Company Settings area by the Master Administrator.

Manage FAQs

Personalized company FAQs (Frequently Asked Questions) can be viewed by both Administrators and Shoppers in the Help section under their Account drop down menu. This is not mandatory; however, the FAQ area will be blank for users if no information is entered. This section outlines how to enter and edit the FAQ information in the Company Settings.

Help				
FAQ's	Policies	Contact Us		
FREQ	UENTLY AS	KED QUESTION S		
Our	company	FAQs are located	in the Vroozi Zendesk Knowledgebase.	
Pleas	se naviga	te to https://vrooz	zi.zendesk.com to see the most updated documentation.	
1 100.	so naviga	10 10 <u>11003.111002</u>	Electroconcom to see the most upuated documentation.	

- 1. Scroll down to the *Help Content* section of the *Company Settings* area.
- **2.** Expand the *Help Content* area by clicking on the carrot.
- **3.** Click the Add FAQ if the FAQ is blank. If there is an existing FAQ, this button will read Edit FAQ instead. The same pop up box will appear for both Add and Edit functions.
- **4.** Input your organization's *FAQ* information using the comprehensive *Rich Text Editor* to customize content.
- **5.** Save.

Manage Policies

Personalized company *Policies* can be viewed by both *Administrators* and *Shoppers* in the *Help* section under their *Account* drop down menu. This is not mandatory; however, the *Policy* area will be blank for users if no information is entered. This section outlines how to enter and edit the *Policy* information in the *Company Settings*.



- 1. Scroll down to the *Help Content* section of the *Company Settings* area.
- 2. Expand the *Help Content* area by clicking on the carrot.
- **3.** Click the *Add Policies* button if the *Policy* section is currently blank. If there is an existing *Policy*, this button will read *Edit Policy* instead. The same pop up box will appear for both *Add* and *Edit* functions.

Policies For Policies: To create Policies click on the "Add" button	
For Policies: To create Policies click on the "Add" button	ADD POLICY

- **4.** Input your organization's *Policy* information using the comprehensive *Rich Text Editor* to customize content.
- **5.** Click Save. To view your updated *Help* information, see *Viewing Help Content* section for instructions.



Manage Contact Information

Personalized company *Contact Information* can be viewed by both *Administrators* and *Shoppers* in the *Help* section under their *Account* drop down menu. This is not mandatory, however the "*Contact Us*" area will be blank for users if no information is entered. This section outlines how to enter and edit the *Policy* information in the *Company Settings*.

Help			
FAQ's	Policies	Contact Us	
CONTA	CTUS		*
Contac	t info@vroo:	com for questions	

1. Expand the *Help Content* area by clicking on the carrot.



2. Click the Add Contact Info button if the Contact Us section is currently blank. If there is existing Contact Info, this button will read Edit Contact Info instead. The same pop up box will appear for both Add and Edit functions.

Contact Us	
Contact info@vroozi.com for questions	
For Contact Us: Click on the "Edit" button to update contact information	Z EDIT CONTACT INFO

3. Input your organization's *Contact Information* using the comprehensive *Rich Text Editor* to customize content.

View Help Content

Where the *Help Content* is created and where it can be viewed is located in two areas of *Catalog*. This section describes how to view the *Help Content* by starting from the *Administrator Homepage*.

- 1. Click on the *Help* option on the drop-down menu. You will be navigated to the *Help Content*.
- **2.** You are able to select *FAQs*, *Policies* and *Contact Information* by clicking on the corresponding tab.

Help				
FAQS	POLICIES	CONTACT US		
FREQUENTLY	Y A SKED QUESTION	NS	*	
102048 (1220)2628-1207				oozi Zendesk Knowledgebase. :sk.com to see the most updated documentation.

APPROVAL WORKFLOW PREFERENCES

Configure when the system should generate email notifications for content *Approvers* to review and approve or reject catalog updates. These notifications are triggered when an existing catalog is edited or updated. *Master Admins* can use any combination of these settings.

If none of these are checked (enabled) then the system will not generate these email notifications for content approvers to review changes.

- 1. Select *Company Settings* off the drop-down menu by clicking on it.
- 2. Scroll down to the Approval Workflow of the Company Settings area.
- **3.** Expand the *Approval Workflow* area by clicking on the carrot.

SYSTEM DEFINITION S	v
HOMEPAGE CARDS	Y
HELP CONTENT	v
APPROVAL WORKFLOW	٣



- **4.** *"For any change to required field in catalogs and/or quotes"* If there is a change to the mandatory fields of an item that already exists in the previous version of the catalog, then an email notification will be sent to the assigned *Approver* to approve or reject this type of change if this box is checked.
- 5. *"For any new item added to catalog and/or quotes"* If there is a new item being added to the catalog or quote, then an email notification will be sent to the assigned *Approver* to approve or reject if this box is checked.
- 6. *"If price changes more than X percent in catalogs and/or quotes" Master Administrators* can specify a percentage (%) value if the price of an existing item changes by more than the specified percentage value. An email notification will be sent to the assigned *Approver* to approve or reject if this box is checked.
- 7. If you check the last box, you may choose to update the percentage value.
- 8. Save.

APPROVAL WORKFLOW		
	For any change to required field in catalogs and/or quotes	
	For any new item added to catalog and/or quotes	
	If price changes more than 5 percent in catalogs and/or quotes	
	🖹 SAVE	Cancel

SUPPLIERS

There are multiple ways to add suppliers in *smartOCI*—as a single supplier or as a *Bulk Upload* with a template.

CREATE A SUPPLIER

Please see <u>Create a Supplier</u> Grab & Go documentation for further details.

SUPPLIER BULK UPLOAD

Upload multiple suppliers at the same time into *Vroozi Catalog using* a template. Suppliers have to be uploaded or created before *Supplier Data Mapping* can occur.

 If you don't already have it, download the Supplier Bulk Upload Template from the Vroozi Catalog Upload File Templates section of the Vroozi Helpdesk at <u>https://vroozi.zendesk.com</u>.



2. Fill out the template with supplier information. For more details of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if s column is required (green) or optional (orange).

Supplier_Bulk_Upload_Template_012016 - Excel									×				
G	13	\cdot : $\times \checkmark f_x$											
2	A		В			С		D		E	F	G	Ē
1	Row	Number	Company	Name	DUNS	Number	er Default_Supplier		O Unique_Supplier_Id Ad		Address_1	Addre	L
2													
3													
4													
5		~											ŀ
	4 1	1	Supplier Bu	Ik Upla	ad	Instruction	is	(+) : [4			Þ	1

- **3.** Save the completed supplier template file to your computer.
- **4.** Log in to *smartOCI*.
- **5.** Click on the *Suppliers* tab.
- 6. In the *Supplier Management* area, Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open a file on your computer.

Vroozi > Supplier Management						
💠 ВАСК	Supplier Management					
CREATE SUPPLIER	SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT					
SUPPLIER ATTRIBUTE		View	Summary			
			Active Suppliers:	1942		
			Inactive Suppliers:	1		
		TOTAL		1943	1	
	Supplier Bulk Upload File:				BROWSE	
		Errors occurr	red during upload: Dowr Processed File : Dowr			

7. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive an error notification describing what needs to be fixed.

SUPPLIER COMPANY LIST

Where Master Administrators can search and manage suppliers in Catalog.

Search

- 1. Click on the *Suppliers* tab and navigate to the *Supplier Company List* area.
- **2.** Type in the name or partial name of the supplier, or the *Unique Supplier ID*, then click the *Search* magnifying glass icon.
- **3.** You may filter by using the *Type* drop down menu. *Type* filter options include *All*, *Catalog Suppliers*, and *Non-Catalog Suppliers*.
- 4. To see the supplier details, click on the linked *Company Name*.
- 5. The search area can be cleared by clicking on the Reset button.



Search Within	Q Reset	Type: CATALOG SI	JPPLIERS T
COMPANY NAME	▼ CREATED ON	▼ CREATED BY	▼ STATUS
222012 Vroozi Test Company	22.08.2018	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
4IMPRINT INC	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
A & G PLUMBING SERVICES, I	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
A&S Sprinkler	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ABSOLUTELY SPOTLESS	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ADVANCED INSTALLATIONS INC	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AJ APPLIANCES	28.12.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AJ Appliance Parts & Service	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AL Coronado Plumbing	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ALYAN PUMP COMPANY	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
otal Records: 1 -10 of 286			Page 1 of 29 < 🕨

Edit an Existing Supplier

- 1. Navigate to the *Supplier Company List* area.
- **2.** Search for the supplier you would like to edit.
- 3. Click on the linked *Company Name* that you would like to edit.
- **4.** Make any necessary changes to the supplier details. The image below has been condensed to only show the header level of each editable category.
- 5. Save.

Activate, Deactivate or Delete a Supplier

- 1. Navigate to the Supplier Company List area.
- 2. Search for the supplier you would like to Activate, Deactivate or Delete.
- **3.** Check the box next to the *Company Name(s)*. More than one supplier can be *Activate*, *Deactivate* or *Delete*.at the same time.
- 4. Click the Activate, Deactivate or Delete. button. Your changes will be saved.



earch Within	Q Reset	Type: ALL	•
▼ COMPANY NAME	▼ CREATED ON	CREATED BY	▼ STATUS
222012 Vroozi Test Company	22.08.2018	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
4IMPRINT INC	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
A & G PLUMBING SERVICES, I	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
A&S Sprinkler	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ABSOLUTELY SPOTLESS	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ADVANCED INSTALLATIONS INC	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AJ APPLIANCES	28.12.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AJ Appliance Parts & Service	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
AL Coronado Plumbing	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
ALYAN PUMP COMPANY	07.04.2017	admin.wrc@vroozi.com	Active
tal Records: 1 -10 of 286			Page 1 of 29 < 🕨

A pop up will appear with a *Deletion Confirmation*. Click the *Delete* button. The supplier will be deleted from the *Supplier Company List* and for all users.

Create a Custom Attribute

Items with certain *Company Attributes*, like a "*Green*" or "*Minority Owned*" can be ranked higher or lower in the search results for *Shoppers* and can be demarcated by different attribute icons. This section shows how to create a *Custom Company Attribute*. There is a set of default *Company Attributes*, but *Administrators* are able to make up their own *Custom Attributes* in addition to the default list.

- 1. From the Supplier Attributes Management page, click 'Add Attribute'.
- 2. Enter an *Attribute Name* into the text box. This field is required.
- **3.** Type in an *Attribute Description*. This is optional.
- **4.** Click the *Add* button to upload a *Logo File*. *Vroozi Catalog will* automatically resize the *Logo File*. Follow the prompts to browse for a file and open it. This is optional but recommended.
- **5.** Click Save. The newly created *Attribute* will be available to be checked and weighted for all *Company Suppliers*.

CREATE	SUPPLIER ATTRIBUTE		
	*Attribute Name:	Local Supplier	
	Attribute Description:	Supplier is within 30 miles of HQ	
	Logo File:	ADD No File Chosen.	



Activate or Deactivate a Custom Attribute

- 1. From the *Supplier Attributes* area, use the check boxes to select the *Attribute Name(s)*. More than one *Attribute* can be selected at a time.
- **2.** Click the *Activate* or *Deactivate* button.
- **3.** A yellow notification will flash across the top as a reminder to republish the associated catalogs for the changes to take effect. (not pictured)

Delete a Custom Attribute

This section shows how to delete an existing *Custom Company Attribute*. Default *Attributes* that are already available in *Vroozi Catalog cannot* be deleted, only *Custom Attributes* that a *Master Administrator* creates can be deleted.

An alternative to deleting, is to *Deactivate* the *Custom Attribute*. Deactivating also hides the *Attribute* from the *Shopper*, but unlike deleting, the deactivated *Attribute* can be made *Active* again. See the *Activate* or *Deactivate* a *Custom Attribute* section for more information.

- 1. From the Supplier Attributes area, use the check box to select the Custom Company Attribute Name(s) to be deleted. More than one Attribute can be selected at a time.
- 2. Click the *Delete* button.
- **3.** A Deletion Confirmation will appear. Click the Delete button to continue.



CONTENT VIEWS & GROUPS

CONTENT VIEWS

Grouping of suppliers and supplier catalogs into logical sets. All types of supplier catalogs can be included.

- Region
- Commodity

- Division
- Groups of users

A single Content View can belong to multiple Content Groups.

CONTENT GROUPS

Used to determine which Content Views and catalogs a Shopper will have access to when logging in.

• Users are assigned to Content Groups in the Vroozi Purchase module in *Master Data > Users*.

The diagram below shows an example of how *Shoppers* are associated with different *Content Views* and *Groups*.





CONFIGURATION

See <u>training materials</u> on Content Group & View management for details on how to add, delete or edit Views/Groups.

CATALOG MANAGEMENT

The *Vroozi Catalog Manager* provides an interface with a three-column layout that *Administrators* can search and filter catalogs of all statuses.

CONTENT MANAGER	COMPANY USERS	DATA MAPPING	SUPPLIERS		
roozi > Content Manager					
2 ange status 3 talog dr	rag & drop 4 em to desire	d status column. To make c	hanges to the catalog click	utton.	
CREATE	· •	ï	5 Search V		FILTER OPTIONS
COSTO			Gearch		FILTER OF HONS
		APPROVED 8		LIVE 9	
-				-	-
Weekslerman	Ÿ	MATNR Test	Ψ.	Staples	v
New		 Unpublished 		7	
				Air Gas	v
PB AVL Catalog	Ŧ				
Updated				Office Depot	v
CDW				Office Supply Inc.	
 Updated 					
- shares				00747	

CATALOG MANAGER ANATOMY

- 1. <u>Content Manager Tab</u>: How to navigate to the Catalog
- 2. <u>Create</u>: This button is located both at the top and bottom of the screen. Click on it and a window appears with a *Catalog Creation* page.
- **3.** <u>**Custom Fields**</u>: This button is located both at the top and bottom of the screen. Clicking on it navigates the user to the *Custom Fields Management* page.
- 4. <u>Refresh</u>: The *Refresh* button refreshes the screen and reflects any new changes by the user.
- **5.** <u>Search Within</u>: This *Search* bar allows searching across *Working*, *Approved*, and *Live* catalogs. Use it in combination with the *Filter Options* for a more specific search.
- 6. <u>Filter Options</u>: Users are able to filter company catalogs by Supplier Name and Catalog Type. Catalog Types include Internal and External Catalogs and Quotes.



- 7. <u>Working Column</u>: These are catalogs that have been uploaded or updated. The Working Column, unlike the Approved or Live Columns, allows Administrators to edit catalog content. They will not be visible to Vroozi Catalog Shoppers until they are approved, then published to the Live Column.
- 8. <u>Approved Column</u>: These are catalogs that have already been approved by the designated approvers for that catalog. However, they will still not be available to *Marketplace Shoppers* until they are published to the *Live Column*.
- **9.** <u>Live Column</u>: These are catalogs that have both approved and published. They are available to use and view by *Marketplace Shoppers*.

Catalog Search & Filter

- 1. Click the carrot next to the filter selection to expand either the *Supplier Name* or *Catalog Type* area. Only one of these areas can be expanded at the same time but are able to filter results simultaneously if selections are made in both.
- 2. Use the check boxes to make the filter selections.
- **3.** To clear all *Filter Options* and search terms, click the *Reset* button. This will repopulate all catalogs that were previously excluded from view.

Vroozi > Content Manager			
To change status of a catalog drag & drop the item to desired	status column. To make changes	to the catalog click 🏐 the button.	
TCREATE 🔹 🚻 CUSTOM FIELDS 🖸 REFRESH]	office depot	Reset FILTER OPTIONS
WORKING	APPROVED	LIVE	► SUPPLIER
			▼ TYPE
		Office Depot	QUOTE
			INTERNAL CATALOG
			EXTERNAL CATALOG

TIP! When navigating away from the Catalog Management page, the search and filter functions will automatically reset, and the view of all catalogs will be restored.

Export Catalog Content

At any time, uploaded catalog items can be exported from the *Catalog Management* screen into a CSV file.

1. Within the Content Manager tab and select Catalog Management.



- 2. Find the catalog you would like to export. (Working, Approved or Live)
- **3.** Hover over the catalog. Then, click the *Cog Wheel* icon and select the *Export* option.

to desired	status column. To make c	changes to the catalog c	lick 💮 the I	button.
EFRESH			Search	Within Q Reset FILTER OPTIONS
	APPROVED			LIVE
	WEI_CATALOG_	EMC	*	Allison Transmission
		EDIT		Partially Published
	Unpublished	X DELETE		Boundless
	efresh v	APPROVED WEI_CATALOG AVL-CONTENT	EFRESH APPROVED WEI_CATALOG_EMC AVL-CONTENT DELETE	APPROVED

- **4.** A notification will flash at the top of the screen to let you know the export is in progress
- 5. An email will be sent to from <u>notifications@vroozi.com</u>. Open the email and click the *Download File* link. Alternatively, you can copy and paste the URL into your browser to begin the download.
- 6. Open the downloaded file to view and save it.



CREATE AN INTERNAL CATALOG

Administrators are able to create different types of catalogs with Vroozi Catalog, including Internal Catalogs, External Catalogs, and Level 2 Punchout Catalogs. Specific configurations may be used for Internal Catalogs, like Tiered Pricing and Policy Items (Find a Vendor) functionality.

INTERNAL CATALOG DEFINITION

Where *Shoppers* can search across a pre-loaded, pre-approved list of items within the *Marketplace* application.

CATALOG CREATION

Catalogs can be assigned to the *Content View* at the time of creation. *Vroozi Catalog Manager* supports catalogs formatted with .XLSX (Excel) and .CSV files. The Vroozi provided Internal Catalog template can be accessed <u>here</u>.

<u>Required Internal Catalog Fields</u>: When uploading an *Internal Catalog* file, certain fields are mandatory. These *Required Fields* are:

- 1. #Item Number
- 2. NEW_ITEM-DESCRIPTION or NEW_ITEM-MATNR
- 3. NEW_ITEM-VENDORMATE
- **4.** NEW_ITEM-PRICE
- 5. NEW_ITEM-CURRENCY
- 6. NEW_ITEM-UOM
- 7. NEW_ITEM-MATGROUP

See Internal Catalog training materials for further details on <u>Internal Catalog</u> <u>creation.</u>

INTERNAL CATALOG IMAGES

There are two ways to attach images.

By entering urls in the image column of the Internal Catalog Template.



By entering the name of the image in the image column and uploading a .zip folder of images along with the sheet. The image names must match the names listed in the Image Column. The system then automatically picks the image from the zipped folder which is mapped against the item. Please see the screenshots below for better understanding.

- **1.** To upload a .ZIP (zipped) *Image File*, click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open an image to associate with the new catalog.
- 2. Type in the *Supplier Company* (vendor) name in the text field.
- **3.** <u>Do not check the External Catalog</u> (Punchout Catalog) check box. See the Create a Punchout Catalog section if you are creating a Punchout Catalog.</u>

Use Tiered Pricing

Tiered Pricing is a way to encourage *Shoppers* to buy larger quantities of a product by applying discounts based on the quantity ordered. These discounts may be "tiered" so that they increase as the order amount is raised.

Administrators are able to define different tiers of price against each item in order to give discounts on high volume purchases within *Internal Catalogs*. *Tiered Pricing* can either be defined through an Excel spreadsheet or through the *Direct Item Update* function within an individual line item. For more information, see the *Edit a Catalog Item* section.

When entering information into the *Supplier Catalog* template, there is a column called ITEM-TIERED_PRICING. Fill in the data for *Tiered Pricing* items. For items that do not have *Tiered Pricing*, the NEW_ITEM-PRICE column must be filled out instead—one or the other needs to be populated with data, but not both. *Tiered Pricing* also cannot be applied on *Bundle* and *Quote*, meaning that the *Tiered Pricing* discount cannot be used in combination with a "bundle" discount. The ITEM-TIERED_PRICING field must be filled out in a specific way. Use the tips and example below to enter the data correctly.



In this example, the first 50 of the items purchased are \$49.99, and 51 or more of the items will cost \$45.99.

1. <u>Brackets</u>: Values entered in the square brackets [] indicate the quantity, whereas the values entered before the brackets indicate the price of the



quantity. Depending on the quantity entered by the *Shopper*, the respective price will be reflected in the *Shopping Cart*.

- 2. <u>Semicolons (;)</u>: A closing semicolon; is required after each closed bracket containing the quantity.
- **3.** <u>Plus, Sign (+)</u>: The plus sign + after the largest listed quantity indicates that this is the lowest tiered price and any additional volume will not result in a lower price.

Policy Items (Find a Vendor)

By marking the *Policy Item* field in the catalog template, *Shoppers* are able to quickly look up the *Approved Vendor Item List* on the *Homepage* using the *Find a Vendor* widget.

	Find a Vendor	
	Approved Vendor List	
Compare Not Yet rated	AEROSOL DUALCIDE P3 17 OZ 12 CS Supplier Part Number: AUR(10809 Manufacturer Number: AUR(10809 Charcoal colored and selayed to be uned with all single hanging urnals. Impregnated with pleasant "Freah" scent to eliminate odors in	Request Item
Compare Not Vet rated	AEROSOL DUALCIDE P3 17 OZ 12 CS Supplier Part Number: AUR101835 Manufacturer Number: AUR101839 Charcoaciovene and selsayod bo used with al single hanging urinals. Impregnated with pleasant "Freah" scent to eliminate odors in	Request Nem

When uploading the catalog template, make sure to populate the following fields to utilize the *Policy Item Approved Vendor List*. These columns, although they are associated, may not be next to each other on the template.

NEW_ITEM-DESCRIPTION	NEW_ITEM-LONGTEXT	MATGROUP	NEW_ITEM-VENDOR	ITEM-POLICY
WHITE Unisex Poly Cotton Cook Shirt with Gripper Closure		42130000	23327531	x
Multipurpse Cleaner, 21 Ounce Ajax Powder				N N
Laundry Detergent, 134 Ounce	21 Oz Ajax Soft Powde	76110000	N-12394586	X
Ajax Liquid	134 Oz Ajax Dual Action	76110000	N-36475765	Х

- **1. NEW_ITEM-DESCRIPTION:** A short description of the item requested.
- 2. NEW_ITEM-LONGTEXT: A long, detailed description of the item requested.
- **3. NEW_ITEM-MATGROUP:** To ensure proper categorization of the *Policy Item*, you must input your desired *Product Category* code in the NEW_ITEM-MATGROUP field. This will allow Shoppers to also browse this



Policy Item from the *Category Tree* represented on the left side of the *Shopper Homepage*.

- **4. NEW_ITEM-VENDOR:** This field must contain the *Vroozi Unique Supplier ID* that is associated to the supplier records in your account to ensure the items are properly associated with the desired vendor
- 5. ITEM-POLICY: When filling out the catalog template, put an "X" in the *Policy Item* column if you would like the *Shoppers* to browse this vendor using the *Approved Vendor List* widget. If there is a blank lift in the *Policy Item* column, the item will not be considered a *Policy Item* and won't be visible when the *Shopper* clicks on the *Vendor List*.



CREATE A PUNCHOUT CATALOG

To use *Punchouts, Shoppers* click on the supplier card and are redirected to the vendor website. Once items are placed into the cart, *Shoppers* check out of the vendor website and the items are transferred into the *Marketplace* cart.

All content and pricing is hosted and therefore managed by the supplier.

CATALOG CREATION

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- **2.** Click the *Create* button near the top right of the *Catalog Management* screen.
- **3.** Select the *Catalog* option from the drop down. A *Create Catalog* window will appear.
- 4. Enter the Catalog Name. This is a required field.
- **5.** Because this is a *Punchout Catalog*, there is no need to add a *Catalog File* or *Image File*.
- 6. Type in the Supplier Company (vendor) name in the text field.
- 7. When creating a *Punchout Catalog*, it is mandatory to check the *External Catalog* box.
- **8.** After checking the *External Catalog* box, an option appears to allow a search. (not pictured) Selecting *Search Allowed*
- Search Allowed: Allows Shoppers to search for Punchout items using the Marketplace search bar and the results will be pulled in from the vendor's website. This functionality depends on whether the vendor supports OCI Background Search.
- **9.** <u>Do not check the Direct Item Update box</u>, as it only applies to creating *Internal Catalogs*.

Edit Catalog		2
*Catalog Name:	Office Depot	
Catalog File:	🗶 📓 BROWSE	
Image File (.zip):	🗶 📓 BROWSE	
Supplier Company:	Office Depot	
External Catalog	X	
Search Allowed		
Direct Item Update		
Fixed Order Quantity		
Do not transfer item description on checkout		



- **10.** Click the carrot to expand the areas you would like to update for the catalog being created. All of the fields in these areas are not considered mandatory for catalog creation and can be updated at a later time. See the *Edit a Catalog* section for more information.
- **11.** Skip the Additional Fields area, as this is only relevant to Internal Catalogs.
- **12.** Expand the External Catalog Definitions area.
- **13.** Select the *Standard Communication Method* using the drop-down menu. This is either OCI or CXML.
- 14. Select the HTTP request *Method* for a request-response. The options are *Post* and *Get*.
- **15. Look for Images in:** Use the drop-down menu to indicate where to Item images are not part of the standard OCI. Make this selection if the vendor may send over images have been uploaded.
- 16. Click the Add button to specify at least one Punchout parameter (i.e. a URL). Vroozi Catalog uses these parameters to construct the Punchout web service request. The number of parameters needed depends on the vendor authentication requirements for Shoppers to use their website.
- 17. Click the *Validate Punchout* button to validate the parameters entered. This verifies the *Punchout* is working correctly. If the parameters are incorrect, there will be a standard error message from the vendor's website. (not pictured/variable)

	Communication Standard:	OCI	•	
	Method:	POST	•	
	Look for Images In:		•	
ADD	Look for Images In:		•	
ADD	Look for Images In: NAME		*	VALUE

- **18.** After expanding the *Content Views* area, select all the relevant *Content Views* to be associated with this catalog by checking the box next to the *Name*.
- **19.** After expanding the *Approvers* area, select the people that have approval rights for this catalog before it can be published *Live* to *Shoppers*. Only one of the selected *Approvers* needs to *Approve* the catalog before it can be moved to the *Live* column by an *Administrator*.
- **20.** Click the *Create* button at the very bottom right of the page to create the new catalog in the system. No changes will be saved until the *Create* button is clicked.


CREATE A LEVEL II PUNCHOUT

LEVEL II CATALOG DEFINITION

A *Level II Punchout* has both an uploaded *Internal Catalog* for the vendor within the application, <u>and</u> an external *Punchout Catalog*. *Shoppers* given access to this type of catalog will be able to use both methods of shopping in tandem to find items for the vendor.

CATALOG CREATION

- **1.** Create a Catalog
- 2. Enter the Catalog Name. This is a required field.
- **3.** Click the *Browse* button next to *Catalog File* area and follow the prompts to select and open the saved catalog template. See the **TIPS!** below for fields relevant to *Level II Punchouts*. For additional details about where to find and fill out the catalog template, see the *Create an Internal Catalog* section.

TIP! There is a Configurable Item Flag column in the catalog template (ITEM-CONFIG). When marking this field with an X, an Order from Supplier button will be visible for Shoppers instead of the typical Add to Cart button. What the Order from Supplier button does is punches the Shopper out to the Vendor's website to see the most up to date pricing information for that particular item. An example of when this is useful is when the item price changes often and a static price uploaded in the catalog wouldn't be accurate.

TIP! Any mandatory Custom Fields listed in the template that have to do with Configurable items, like size or color selections, will result in having a Configurable Item button available to Shoppers. This button allows the Shopper to make choices before adding the item into the cart. This is different from the Configurable Item Flag mentioned above, even though both include the term "configurable," different columns are used.



- **4.** To upload .ZIP (zipped) *Image File*, click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open an image to associate with the new catalog.
- 5. Type in the Supplier Company (vendor) name in the text field.
- 6. When creating a *Punchout Catalog*, it is mandatory to check the *External Catalog* box.
- 7. Expand the External Catalog Definitions area.
- **8.** Select the *Standard Communication Method* using the drop-down menu. This is either OCI or CXML.
- **9.** Select the HTTP request *Method* for a request-response. The options are *Post* and *Get*.
- **10.** Use the drop-down menu to indicate where to *Look for Images*. Item images are not part of the standard OCI. Make this selection if the vendor may send over images have been uploaded.
- Click the Add button to specify at least one Punchout parameter (i.e. a URL). Vroozi Catalog uses these parameters to construct the Punchout web service request. The number of parameters needed depends on the vendor authentication requirements for Shoppers to use their website.
- 12. Click the *Validate Punchout* button to validate the parameters entered. This verifies the *Punchout* is working correctly. If the parameters are incorrect, there will be a standard error message from the vendor's website. (not pictured/variable)
- **13.** After expanding the *Content Views* area, select all the relevant *Content Views* to be associated with this catalog by checking the box next to the *Name*.
- 14. After expanding the *Approvers* area, select the people that have approval rights for this catalog before it can be published *Live* to *Shoppers*. Only one of the selected *Approvers* needs to *Approve* the catalog before it can be moved to the *Live* column by an *Administrator*.
- **15.** Click the *Create* button at the very bottom right of the page to create the new catalog in the system. No changes will be saved until the *Create* button is clicked.



Edit a Catalog

Existing catalogs and items can be edited in *Vroozi Catalog* while listed in the *Working* column. When catalog changes are made, there is also a catalog version functionality to keep track of the updates.

EDIT A CATALOG (DIRECT ITEM UPDATE)

Catalogs can be edited in two ways in *Vroozi Catalog*. By selecting *Direct Item Update*, *Admins* are able to edit the catalog items directly from the *User Interface* by duplicating an already *Approved* or *Live* catalog into the *Working* column to make amendments. Alternatively, catalogs can be edited by uploading an Excel file. See the *Edit a Catalog (File Upload)* section for instructions.

See <u>Direct Item Update</u> materials for further details.

EDIT A CATALOG (FILE UPLOAD)

Uploading the catalog template is the only way to add *new* items to an existing catalog.

See <u>File Upload</u> materials for further details.

CATALOG VERSION MANAGEMENT

Vroozi Catalog automatically stores new catalog version information. Any catalogs that are in the *Approved* or *Live* columns are locked in read-only mode. A new version of the catalog is created whenever the *Administrator* edits the catalog details (i.e. item price).

Unlike editing catalog details, changing the catalog header level information does not create a new version of the catalog. Below is a list of what is considered header data that doesn't create a new catalog version:

- Catalog Name
- Catalog ID
- Start Date
- End Date
- External Catalog Definition



New catalog versions when *Approved* or *Published* as *Live*, replace the original catalog. There can only be one new version of an existing catalog in the system at any given time.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- 2. If needed, use the *Search Within* and/or *Filter* functions to find the desired catalog(s).
- **3.** Click on the carrot(s) next to the catalog name to reveal the summary information.
- **4.** You will be able to view the *Version Number* in addition to other creation data.

APPROVE, REJECT & PUBLISH CATALOGS

APPROVE A CATALOG

Vroozi Catalog has "drag and drop" functionality for designated users to approve catalogs. This section shows how to approve a newly edited or uploaded catalog. *Administrators* and *Approvers* of a catalog will be notified via email when there is a pending catalog awaiting approval. After approval, a notification is sent out to *Administrators* and the other *Approvers* assigned to that particular catalog. Only one *Approver* needs to approve in order for the catalog to have an *Approved* status.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- 2. Find the catalog in the *Working* column you would like to *Approve*. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.
- 3. If needed, review the catalog details. (not pictured)
- **4.** Drag and drop the catalog from the *Working* column to the *Approved* column.
- **5.** An Approve Confirmation message will appear. Click the Approve button. The catalog will now appear in the Approved column.

REJECT A **C**ATALOG

Administrators and Approvers of a catalog will be notified via email when there is a pending catalog awaiting their approval. If rejected, the catalog will be listed in the *Working* column with a *Rejected* status. This section outlines how to reject a catalog that is pending approval in the *Working* column.

Approvers and Administrators are also able to reject catalogs that are in the Approved column by dragging and dropping them back into the Working column.



- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- **2.** Find the catalog in the *Working* column. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.
- 3. If needed, review the catalog details. (not pictured)
- **4.** Hover over the catalog to reveal the *Cog Wheel*. Then, click the *Reject* option from the drop-down menu.

CREATE 🔻	CUSTOM FIELDS	O REF	RESH
WORKING			
Weekslerman		-	
• New	EDIT		
Version Number	:1 Ø REJECT		
Created On: 20.0 Created By: Noti	V DELETE		
Type: Internal Ca Method: Direct U	e i Era orti		
Number of Items			
Status: New			
Active: Active			

5. A Reject Confirmation message will appear. Click the Reject button.

PUBLISH A CATALOG

Approvers and Administrators will be notified via email when a catalog is Approved and is waiting to be published.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- **2.** Find the catalog in the *Approved* or column. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.
- 3. Drag and drop the catalog from the *Approved* column to the *Live* column.
- **4.** A Publish Confirmation message will appear. Click the Publish button. The catalog will now appear in the *Live* column. An email will be sent notifying *Approvers* and *Administrators* that the catalog has been published.

TIP! If the same catalog has been published previously, the newly published version will replace the old version in the Live column.

DEACTIVATE A CATALOG

1. Find the catalog you would like to *Deactivate* in the *Live* column. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.



2. Hover over the catalog and click on the *Cog Wheel*. Then, select the *Deactivate* option from the drop-down menu.

🚡 CREATE 🔹 🚻 CUSTOM FIELDS	C REFRESH		Search	Within	Reset FILTER OPT	TIONS		
WORKING		APPROVED		LIVE				
USTOOL	Ψ.	AVL-CONTENT	v	Allison Transmission				
Sanity-0131	v	Unpublished		Boundless	EDIT DEACTIVATE			
WARISS_CAT_TEST v		CATALOGEXPIRY_TEST	Ŧ	McKesson				
• New					X DELETE			

- **3.** A Deactivate Confirmation will appear. Click the Deactivate button.
- **4.** The catalog will remain in the *Live* column, now with an *Offline* (deactivated) status.

ACTIVATE A CATALOG

- **1.** Find the catalog you would like to *Activate*.
 - Deactivated catalogs will have an *Offline* status. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.
- 2. Hover over the catalog and click on the *Cog Wheel*. Then, select the *Activate* option from the drop-down menu.
- **3.** An *Activate Confirmation* will appear. Click the *Activate* button. The catalog will be activated and remain in the *Live* column.

DELETE A CATALOG

An alternative to deleting, is to *Deactivate* the catalog. Deactivating also hides the catalog from the *Shopper's* view, but unlike deleting, an *Inactive* supplier can be made *Active* again. See the *Deactivate* a *Catalog* section for more information.

- 1. Find the catalog you would like to *Delete*. You may choose to use the *Search Within* or *Filter* functions to find it.
- 2. Click on the *Cog Wheel*. Then, select the *Delete* option from the drop-down menu. (shown above)
- **3.** A *Deletion Confirmation* will appear. Click the *Delete* button. The catalog will be removed.

APPROVE A CATALOG ITEM



Administrators and Approvers of a catalog will be notified via email when there are pending catalog items awaiting approval. This section describes how to approve items within a catalog.

- 1. In the *Working* column, click on the *Catalog Name* link of the catalog with items you would like to approve. You may need to use the *Search Within* and/or *Filter* functions to find the catalog.
- 2. You will be navigated to the *Catalog Item* screen with a list of catalog items.
- **3.** Updated items will have a *Pending Approval Status*.
- **4.** If needed, click on the item *Description* link to see the *Item Details* screen. (not pictured)
- 5. Select the items to approve by using the checkbox in grey next to the *Description*.
- 6. Click the *Approve* button. The items will be approved.

CATALOG ITEMS				A
DESCRIPTION	VENDOR MAT #	PRICE	MFR. PART #	STATUS
Bib Apron W/Nylon Ties	46092-010	18.84		Pending Approval
Unisex Drawstring Pant	14020-046-XLT	8.63		Pending Approval

REJECT A **C**ATALOG **I**TEM

Approvers and *Administrators* will be notified via email when there are pending catalog items awaiting their approval.

- 1. In the *Working* column, click on the *Catalog Name* link of the catalog with items you would like to approve or reject. You may need to use the *Search Within* and/or *Filter* functions to find the catalog.
- 2. You will be navigated to the *Catalog Item* screen with a list of catalog items.
- **3.** Updated items will have a *Pending Approval Status*.
- **4.** If needed, click on the item *Description* link to see the *Item Details* screen. (not pictured)
- **5.** Select the items to reject by using the checkbox in grey next to the *Description*.
- 6. Click the *Reject* button. The items will be rejected, and the catalog will remain in the *Working* column with a *Partially Rejected* or Partially Approved status.



PUBLISH A CATALOG ITEM

Administrators and Approvers of a catalog will be notified via email when there are pending catalog items awaiting approval. This section shows how Admins can publish only selected catalog items within the catalog, without publishing the entire catalog item list.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- 2. Find the name of the catalog containing the items you would like to publish. You may need to use the *Search Within* and/or *Filter* functions to find the catalog.
- **3.** Click on the *Catalog Name* containing items you would like to publish in the *Approved* or *Live* column. You will be navigated to the *Catalog Item* screen with a list of catalog items. See the **TIP!** below for additional information.

TIP! If the unpublished items are in the Approved column, it will have an Unpublished status. If some but not all the catalog items are already Live (and visible to Shoppers), the catalog will be in the Live column with a Partially Published status.

- **4.** Find the item(s) you would like to publish. You may choose to use the *Search Within* function, or page through the catalog list.
- 5. Check the box next to the item's *Descriptions* to select them.
- 6. Click the *Publish* button. The item's statuses will change from *Approved* to *Published*. An email notifying *Admins* and *Approvers* will be sent notifying them of the newly published items.
- **7.** Click the *Back* button in the navigation bar on the left to return to the *Catalog Management* screen. (not pictured)
- **8.** The catalog will be in the *Live* column with a *Partially Published* status. Until *all* the items in the catalog are published, it will continue to be labeled as *Partially Published*.

DELETE A CATALOG ITEM

Administrators can delete individual line items while the catalog is in the Working column in Catalog . The catalog must have Direct Item Update checked. See the Edit a Catalog (Direct Item Update) section for more information.



Create Catalog		ж
*Catalog Name:	Office Depot	
Catalog File:	🗶 📓 BROWSE	
Image File (.zip):	🗶 📓 BROWSE	
Supplier Company:		
External Catalog		
Direct Item Update		
Fixed Order Quantity		
Do not transfer item description on checkout		

Vroozi Catalog does not allow individual items to be added directly from the *User Interface (UI)*. To add items, the catalog template must be updated with the changes and uploaded. See the *Edit a Catalog (File Upload)* section for instructions on how to do this.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- **2.** Click on the Catalog Name link in the Working column. The catalog <u>must</u> be in the Working column for an item to be deleted.
- **3.** Find the items you would like to delete. You may use the search function to do this.
- 4. Check the box next to item(s) you would like to delete.
- **5.** Click the *Delete* button.
- **6.** A *Deletion Confirmation* window will appear. Click the *Delete* button. The item will be removed from the catalog.



CUSTOM FIELDS

In *Vroozi Catalog*, *Administrators* have the option of defining custom characteristics for the vendor catalog and/or line items within a catalog called *Custom Fields*.

BACK	Custom Fields Managem	nent			
CREATE CUSTOM					
		2 View Summary			
		Drop Down List :	18		
		Fixed Value :	38		
		Flag:	10		
		Input Field (Small) :	9		
		Input Field (Medium	ı): 7		
		Input Field (Large) :	4		
		TOTAL:	86		
	CUSTOM FIELDS				
	Search Custom Fields	٥ ک	3		
	4 FIELD NAME	DISPLAY NAME	FIELD TYPE	DESCRIPTION	STATUS
	Artikelnummer	Artikelnummer	Fixed Value		Active
		BODY MATERIAL	Fixed Value		Active
	BODY MATERIAL	BODTMATERIAL			
	CPU Speed	CPU Speed	Fixed Value		Active

- 1. Select 'Create Custom Field'
 - Attach to specific catalogs
- 2. Sort Custom Fields View
- 3. Search by keyword or click name to view
- 4. Check the box next to the name then Delete, Activate or Deactivate selected Views or Groups.

CUSTOM FIELD TYPES

Custom Fields allow *Administrators* to tailor catalog and line item characteristics for system users. These fields are able to be created and managed by amending and uploading the catalog template in the system. This section defines the different types of customizable fields.

There are four types of *Custom Fields* available in *Catalog* : *Input Field*, *Fixed Value*, and *List/Drop Down*.



Type:	DROP DOWN LIST	•
	DROP DOWN LIST	
	FIXED VALUE	
	FLAG	
	INPUT FIELD (SMALL)	
	INPUT FIELD (MEDIUM)	
	INPUT FIELD (LARGE)	

- 6. <u>Input Field (Text)</u>: The *Input Field* data type is an editable area that is available on the item detail screen for the *Shopper*. This free text area may be used by the *Shopper* to add comments to the item before adding it to the cart. An example of this is shipping information. There are three font sizes of *Input Fields*—small, medium, and large. In order to associate these fields with an item in the catalog, enter an "X" in the item's input type custom field cell.
 - i. Input Field—Field Declaration: TEXT
 - ii. Input Medium Field—Field Declaration: MEDIUMTEXT
 - iii. Input Field Large—Field Declaration: LARGETEXT
- 7. <u>Fixed Value</u>: The *Fixed Value* appears as a label on the item details screen. This field may contain any information that the supplier or purchasing company would like to display other than the default catalog fields. This is a fixed body of text and can be used for things like address information.
- 8. <u>List/Drop Down</u>: The *List* or *Drop-Down* field allows the Shopper to select from a list of options, like size or color choices. This supports *Dynamic Part Numbering* and *Price Modification* based on the Shopper's selections. This catalog field accepts || (vertical bars) to indicate selection. For example, this field accepts *Price Adders* and *Subtractors*. The list items are separated by semicolons, and if there are associated *Price Adders/Subtractors*, this is designated by adding a numerical value after a colon, prior to the semi-colon separator. When a user selects a value with a *Price Adder* or *Subtractor*, the price of the item dynamically will change. If the value is positive, then the updated price will be the value plus the original price. If it is a negative value, then the updated price will be the value subtracted from the original amount.
- **9.** <u>Flags</u>: A *Flag* field can be associated with items and can be used as item attributes that can be used by the *Shopper* to filter search results. In order to associate these fields with an item in a catalog, an "X" must be entered in the item's corresponding *Flag Custom Field* cell. They work like *Supplier Attributes*, except these are associated with individual items in a catalog, as opposed to all items associated with a supplier. Unlike the *Supplier Attribute* weight functionality, *Flags* don't affect the ranking of search results.



An icon image can be uploaded for a *Flag* field. This icon will appear with the item on the search result and product detail page for *Shoppers*.

CREATE A CUSTOM FIELD

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- 2. Near the top left of the Vroozi Catalog screen, click the Custom Fields button.
- 3. Click on the Create Custom Field button.
- **4.** Enter the *Field Name* that will be listed on the catalog template to associate with the *Custom Field*. This is a required field.
- 5. Enter the *Display Name*, which is how the field will appear to *Shoppers*. This is a required field.
- **6.** Enter a *Description* if needed. Only *Administrators* are able to view this information.
- **7.** Choose the field *Type* from the drop-down menu. See the *Custom Field Types* section for more information.
- **8.** The *Custom Field Defaults* area will update based on the field *Type* selection made above. Fill this section out accordingly.
- 9. Save.
- 10. Click the Add Catalogs button to associate catalogs.
- **11.** Find the catalogs that you would like to associate with the *Custom Field* being created. You may choose to use the *Search Catalogs* function.
- 12. Check the box next to the Catalog Name to select it.
- 13. Click Save. Your selected catalogs will be listed. (not pictured)
- **14.** Click the *Back* button to return to the *Custom Fields Management* screen. (not pictured)

ACTIVATE OR DEACTIVATE OR DELETE A CUSTOM FIELD

An alternative to deleting, is to *Deactivate* the field. Deactivating also hides the *Custom Field* from the *Shopper's* view, but unlike deleting the field is listed as an *Inactive* record that can be made *Active* again.

- **1.** Select Catalog Management.
- 2. Near the top left of the Vroozi Catalog screen, click the Custom Fields button.
- **3.** Find the *Custom Field Name* you would like to *Activate, Deactivate or Delete.* You may choose to use the *Search Custom Fields* bar to find it.
- 4. Check the box to select it.
- **5.** Click the *Activate* or *Deactivate* button.





COMPANY USERS

See User Roles with Definitions and Quick Reference Guide for user role descriptions and permissions.

CREATE A USER

Users are created in the Company Users tab. Further details on creating a user can be accessed <u>here</u>.

CONTENT MANAGER	COMPANY USERS DATA MAPPING	S	UPPLIERS			
cozi > User Management						
BACK	User Management					
CREATE USER 2	USERS SYSTEM USERS					
	USER SUMMARY					
		View	Summary			
			Master Administrator:	5		
			Administrator:	1		
			Buyers:	2		
			Approver:	2		
			Shopper View Only:	0		
	USER INFORMATION					
	Search Users		Q Reset			
	▼ E-MAIL ADDRESS			ROLE	STATUS	LAST LOGIN
	michael.noble+approver@vroozi.com			Approver	Active	24.02.2017
	michael.noble+madmin@vroozi.com			Master Admin	Active	14.04.2017

TIP! A user can have multiple roles. A user can be any combination of an Administrator, Approver and Buyer. Depending on what roles a user is assigned, they will be granted specific privileges within Catalog. However, if a user is assigned the role of Master Administrator, they will be assigned the other three roles at the same time.

Only *Master Admins* have the rights to create other *Master Admins* and *Administrators*.

EDIT A USER

Once the user has been created, they receive a "*Welcome to Catalog*" email with a username, temporary password, and a link to *Vroozi Catalog*. For more information about getting started with the welcome email, see '*Logging in for the First-Time*' section.

- **1.** Select Company Users.
- 2. Use the Search User function to find the user you would like to edit.
- 3. Click on the user's Email Address link



- **4.** Near the top the *Administrator Homepage*, click the *Company Users* tab. You will be navigated to the *User Management* screen.
- 5. Make the necessary edits to the *User Settings* or *Default Preferences* areas. Any field with a red asterisk* cannot be left blank.
- 6. Click Save. The user will be created and sent the "*Welcome to Catalog*" email.

ACTIVATE, DEACTIVATE OR DELETE A USER

- 1. Find the user you would like to Activate or Deactivate.
- 2. Check the box next to the user's *Email Address* to select it.
- 3. Click the Activate Deactivate or Delete button.

TIP! You cannot not Activate, Deactivate or Delete your own account.

TIP! Administrators are not able to Activate or Deactivate other Administrators. Only Master Admins can deactivate another Admin.

RESET A USER'S PASSWORD

Administrators are able to reset another user's password in the User Management area of Catalog . This section shows the steps to take to do a password reset. Marketplace does not allow you to reset your own password as an Administrator. For more information of resetting an Admin or Master Admin password, see the Forgot Password (For Administrators) section.

- **1.** Find the user you would like to edit.
- 2. Check the box next to the user's *Email Address* to select it.
- **3.** Click the *Reset Password* link. An email will be sent to the user with a new temporary password. They are then able to log in to *Marketplace* and create a new password. See the *Password Change* section for more information.



Data Mapping

Vroozi Catalog allows for various types of data mapping files to be uploaded. **data mapping** is the process of **mapping data** fields from a source file to their related target fields

Each template includes a *Mapping* tab and an *Instructions* tab to assist in filling out the data properly.

CATEGORY MAPPING

Categories classify products and services in a way that makes sense for your organization. Using *Category Mapping*, *Marketplace* dynamically maps the supplier-provided category codes, to the categories that your organization uses. This section outlines how to upload *Product Category* template files into *Catalog*.

Every time you upload a mapping file, existing mappings will be overridden.

- 1. If you don't already have it, download the <u>Category Mapping Template</u> from the Vroozi HelpDesk.
- 2. Fill out the template with the *Product Category* information. For more details of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if a column is required (peach/light orange) or optional (bold orange).

x	0			Catego	y_Ma	apping_Tem	plate_012016	- E	xcel		-	- 🗆	8	×
11	*	÷	\times	√ fs	:	LEVEL_3								¥
	А			В			С			D		1	Ē	-
1	ROW_NUMB	ER	UNIQUI	E_SYSTEM	I_ID	UNIQUE	SUPPLIER	ID	SUPPLIER	CATEGORY	СОМРА	NY_C	AT	
2														
3														
4														
r					1.0		~	0.5					_	-
	- •	Cat	egory N	Aapping	Ir	nstructions	(+)	3					►	
RE/	ADY						E	8				+ 10	0%	



The *Display* column is used to flag individual rows in these tables, to be visible to the *Shopper*.

For Category Mapping, UoM and Currency mapping tables, unless a particular row is flagged for Display, the value is not going to be visible in the Not in Catalog form on Shopper User Interface (UI). This assumes that the buying organization is using the Not in Catalog form.

Because the *Category* mapping table is used to set up both category mapping behavior upon shopping cart checkout, and the *Category Tree* that *Shoppers* see, the *Display* flag also affects the *Category Tree*. Unless a particular row is flagged to be displayed, it won't show up in the *Shopper* category tree.

UoM and *Currency* mapping tables can also be set up to show their data to *Shoppers*, based on the *Shopper's* associated *Content Group*.

• The Category Mapping, UoM and Currency mapping values can now be associated with Content Views.

When the *Shopper* logs in, the system uses the assigned *Content Group* to determine which *Content Views* can access, then only shows the appropriate *Category, UoM* and *Currency* codes in the *Not in Catalog* form. This assumes that the buying organization is using the *Not in Catalog* form.

- 1. Save the completed *Category Mapping* template file to your computer.
- 2. Log in to Catalog.
- **3.** Click on the *Data Mapping* tab.
- **4.** The *Category Mapping* tab is the first of the mapping tabs and will already be selected for you. Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open the completed *Category Mapping* file on your computer.
- 5. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive a *Download Error Report* link. Clicking on this will download a PDF file that contains details on a row-by-row basis of the issues in the file.
- 6. If you would like to download the existing mapping file at any time, click the *Download Processed Data* link.



SUPPLIER ID MAPPING

Before *Supplier ID* mapping can be done, the suppliers must first exist in the system. See additional supplier-related sections for more information if you haven't already done this.

Every time you upload a mapping file, existing mappings will be overridden.

- 1. If you don't already have it, download the *Supplier ID Mapping Template* from the *Marketplace Upload File Templates* section of the knowledge base at <u>https://vroozi.zendesk.com</u>.
 - The template name is **Vendor_ID_Mapping_Template**
- 2. Fill out the template with the *Vendor ID* information. For more detail of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if a column is required (peach/light orange), optional (bold orange).

X	ILE	ਿ ਦੇ Home	~ ∓ INSERT	Vendor_ID PAGE LAYO	_Mapping_Template_012016 DUT FORMULAS D	- Excel ATA REVIEW	? 🖻 — 🗖 VIEW S	× ign in
G4	4	•	\times	f _x				¥
1		A		В	С	D	E	
1	ROW	NUMBER	UNIQUE_S	SYSTEM_ID	UNIQUE_SUPPLIER_ID	SUPPLIER_ID	COMMENTS	
2								
3								
4								-
	4 F	Ve	endor Mapp	ping Inst	ructions 🕘 🕀 🗄	A		•
RE4	ADY	2.5		05 <u>-</u>] 🛛	+ 100	%

- **3.** Back in Vroozi Catalog, click on the *Data Mapping* tab.
- **4.** Click the *Supplier ID* tab.
- **5.** Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open the completed *Currency* file on your computer.
- 6. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive a *Download Error Report* link. Clicking on this will download a PDF file that contains details on a row-by-row basis of the issues in the file.
- 7. If you would like to download the existing mapping file at any time, click the *Download Processed Data* link.



CONTENT ACCESS MAPPING

A Shopper logging into Vroozi Marketplace or Vroozi Purchase needs to have Content Views associated with them in order to be able to access any content in the system. These Content View associations are made via the assignment of a Content Group.

The default method to determine which *Content Group* should be assigned to the current user requires that the *Content Group's* CGROUPTOKEN or CGROUPNAME be passed to *Marketplace* as a parameter in the URL. This token is unique to a particular *Content Group* and used to identify the *Content Group* to be assigned. *Administrators* can optionally choose to include the *Marketplace* generated token for an external ERP system configured in their account. This token should be provided under the SYSTEMID parameter. This can be used to specify the *Content Group* association if the Shopper is logging in from a particular external ERP system. If the URL does not contain a CGROUPTOKEN or CGROUPNAME, then the user's *Unique Identifier* value (UNAME) is used to assign a mapped *Content Group* to them.

- 1. If you don't already have it, download the *Content Access Mapping Template* from the *Marketplace Upload File Templates* section of the knowledge base at <u>https://vroozi.zendesk.com</u>.
- 2. Fill out the template with content information. For more detail of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if s column is required (peach/light orange) or optional (bold orange)
- 3. Log in to Catalog.
- **4.** Click on the *Data Mapping* tab.
- 5. Click the Content Access tab.
- 6. Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open the completed *Content Access* file on your computer.

Data Mappir	ig					
CATEGORY	SUPPLIER ID	CONTENT ACCESS	UNIT OF MEASURE	CURRENCY		
CONTENT ACC	ESS MAPPING					A
Upload	Mapping File:	Process	sed File : Download pro	pressed data	BROWSE	

- 7. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive a *Download Error Report* link. Clicking on this will download a PDF file that contains details on a row-by-row basis of the issues in the file.
- **8.** If you would like to download the existing mapping file at any time, click the *Download Processed Data* link.



UNIT OF MEASURE (UOM) MAPPING

This section shows how to upload a Unit *of Measure (UoM)* mapping into the Marketplace using a template. Every time you upload a mapping file, existing mappings will be overridden.

- If you don't already have it, download the UoM Mapping Template from the Marketplace Upload File Templates section of Vroozi Helpdesk at <u>https://vroozi.zendesk.com</u>.
- 2. Fill out the template with content information. For more detail of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if a column is required (peach/light orange) or optional (bold orange).

x		UoM_Ma	pping_Template_012	1016 - Excel			x
J1	3 * :	$\times \checkmark f_x$					¥
	A	В	С	D	E	F	-
1	ROW_NUMBER	UNIQUE_SYSTEM_ID	SUPPLIER_UOM	COMPANY_UOM	COMMENTS	DESCRIPTION	N D
2							
3							
1							
	- + U	OM Mapping Instru	ictions 🕀	: •			F
RE/	ADY]	+ 1	00%

- **3.** Log in to Catalog .
- **4.** Click on the *Data Mapping* tab.
- 5. Click the Unit of Measure tab.
- 6. Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open the completed *Unit of Measure* file on your computer.
- 7. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive a *Download Error Report* link. Clicking on this will download a PDF file that contains details on a row-by-row basis of the issues in the file.
- **8.** If you would like to download the existing mapping file at any time, click the *Download Processed Data* link.

CURRENCY MAPPING

This section shows how to upload *Currency* mapping into the Marketplace using a template. Every time you upload a mapping file, existing mappings will be overridden.

1. If you don't already have it, download the *Currency Mapping Template* from the *Marketplace Upload File Templates* section of the knowledge base at <u>https://vroozi.zendesk.com</u>.



2. Fill out the template with content information. For more details of how to enter data correctly, click the *Instructions* tab. From this tab you will be able to see if s column is required (peach/light orange) or optional (bold orange.)

x)			I	JoM_Ma	pping_Tem	plate_012	2016 - Excel			-		×
J1	3	*	: 🗙	\checkmark	<i>fx</i>								۷
		A		В		C		D		E	F		
1	ROW	NUMB	ER UNIQUE	SYST	EM_ID	SUPPLIEF	_UOM	COMPANY	Y_UOM	COMMENTS	DESCRIPTIC	N D	
2													
3													
1													
	4 - 1		UOM Mapp	oing	Instru	ctions	$(\mathbf{+})$: [•			Þ]
REA	DY							III			+	100%	6

- **3.** Log in to Catalog .
- 4. Click on the Data Mapping tab.
- **5.** Click the *Currency* tab.
- **6.** Click the *Browse* button and follow the prompts to select and open the completed *Currency* file on your computer.
- 7. If there is anything that is wrong with the template data, you will receive a *Download Error Report* link. Clicking on this will download a PDF file that contains details on a row-by-row basis of the issues in the file.
- **8.** If you would like to download the existing mapping file at any time, click the *Download Processed Data* link.